COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, DIVISION THREE

Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear, Petitioner
v.
Michael Underwood, Respondent

ON APPEAL FROM PIERCE COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON

PETITION FOR REVIEW

Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear 4915 SW 319th Lane Apt E-304 Federal Way WA., 98023-4123 253-754-6903 Fax: 253-517-8442 gummobear@hotmail.com Aug 25 15 01:19p

2535178442

A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

The Petitioner is Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear, who is the appellant and the plaintiff in the case under appeal.

B. CITATION TO THE COURT OF APPEALS DECISION: Court of appeals decision in case no. 32127-4-III issued on May 26, 2015 in the case of Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear, App. v. Michael Underwood, Res. Order on Motion for Reconsideration on 7-28-2015

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

- 1. Did the court abuse its discretion when it dismissed the lawsuit when it knew that the plaintiff was incompetent and was trying to get a guardian appointed?
- 2. Did the plaintiff have possible arguments against the statute of limitations argument that was presented to dismiss the case that he was prevented from making because a guardian had not been appointed?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

 On February 19, 2010, the plaintiff filed suit against the defendant for malpractice in connection with jail time he unnecessarily served because of the defendant's legal advice. The complaint was signed

by his durable power of attorney Richard Lennstrom and the plaintiff (CP3-9)

- 2. The case was removed to federal court on April 2, 2010. (CP 10-73).
- 3. At the time the present action was dismissed, the plaintiff had been declared incompetent by four different courts, the most recent being in 2010 in Western District of Washington case ##10-5227-BHS (CP343)
- 4. Richard Lennstrom, a friend, and John Scannell, an attorney in the ninth circuit, petitioned the court to have a guardian appointed in Pierce County Superior Court Case #13-4-00357-3 so he could appear in this action Unfortunately, Mr. Lennstrom passed away before a guardian could be appointed. The court, after several months, decided that venue had to be transferred to King County which was accomplished on September 5, 2013 by the transfer to King County case # 13-4-10580-0. (CP 343-4).
- 5. The defendants filed a motion for summary judgment on July 31, 2013 citing statute of limitations for failure to serve. (CP 78-98)
- 6. The plaintiff filed a response on September 17, 2013 moving for a continuance so he could appear by guardian as required by RCW.

At the time of his response, the King County Superior Court was going to appoint a guardian ad litem that day to determine whether a guardian should be appointed. (CP 344)

- 7. The court dismissed the case on September 27, 2013 without appointing a guardian ad litem and without granting a continuance so that a guardian could be appointed. (CP-409-410)
- 8. Scannell was appointed guardian on 3-31-2015 King County Superior Court case #13-4-10580-0. (Judicial Notice)

ARGUMENT

1. THE COURT SHOULD NOT HAVE DISMISSED THE CASE WHEN THE APPELLANT COULD NOT DEFEND AGAINST A DISMISSAL BECAUSE NO GUARDIAN WAS APPOINTED.

RCW 4.08.060 states as follows:

When an incapacitated person is a party to an action in the superior courts he or she shall appear by guardian, or if he or she has no guardian, or in the opinion of the court the guardian is an improper person, the court shall appoint one to act as guardian ad litem. Said guardian shall be appointed as follows:

- (1) When the incapacitated person is plaintiff, upon the application of a relative or friend of the incapacitated person.
- (2) When the incapacitated person is defendant, upon the application of a relative or friend of such incapacitated

person, such application shall be made within thirty days after the service of summons if served in the state of Washington, and if served out of the state or service is made by publication, then such application shall be made within sixty days after the first publication of summons or within sixty days after the service out of the state. If no such application be made within the time above limited, application may be made by any party to the action.

2. THE PLAINTIFF COULD HAVE RAISED DEFENSES HAD HE BEEN ALLOWED TO APPEAR.

RCW 4.15.190 allows for the tolling of the statute of limitations for the period of time that the appellant was incapable of understanding the nature of the proceedings, which could be indefinitely for a permanently disabled person. *Young v. Key Pharmaceuticals, Inc.*, 112 Wash. 2d 216, 224, 770 P.2d 182 (1989).

The plaintiff also might have asked for equitable tolling for the period of time he was requesting a guardian be appointed. Equitable tolling is a remedy that permits a court to allow an action to proceed when justice requires it, even though a statutory time period has elapsed. *In re Pers. Restraint of Carlstad*, 150 Wn.2d 583, 593, 80 P.3d 80 (2003). The court may allow for relief through equitable tolling for a person adjudged insane.. *See Ames*, 176 Wash. 509. (plaintiff adjudicated insane):

3. THE COURT OF APPEALS ERRED BY IGNORING PUBLISHED PRECEDENT BY RULING THAT CHIOFAR SHOULD HAVE MOVED FOR APPOINTMENT OF A GUARDIAN AND SHOULD HAVE PRESENTED A DEFENSE WHEN HE WAS PREVENTED FROM PRESENTING A DEFENSE BY STATUTE.

There are several indications that division III did not put the requisite care into analyzing this case and preparing its decision:

It used esoteric language/jargon at times which appear to attempt to obfuscate or otherwise confuse the lay person;

It used run-on sentences which at times approach word salad; It referred to cases but did not properly cite or footnote, such as Mr. Chiofar's cases against DSHS. Also, when the allusions to these cases are made, they are not cited as the Administrative Hearings but are grouped as 'cases filed' by Mr. Chiofar in an attempt to make Chiofar appear to be pathologically litigious;

It misspelled names (John Scannell is in one citation spelled correctly and in at least three other citations called John Scanlon);

Taken in isolation, these shortcomings may merely reflect a lack of care to prepare an otherwise tenable decision. But in this case, the undersigned is convinced that the above mentioned negligence is symptomatic of a larger issue. That is, the third division, for whatever reason, simply did not care enough about this case to analyze it.

Most importantly, the decision is devoid of any rational logic which can explain how Mr. Bear should have been required to present "evidence", make "required showings", and "raise defenses" when under the plain language of RCW 4.08.060 he could not even appear, let alone present arguments and evidence.

The decision creates some facts out of thin air, without any citing to any record and have no basis whatsoever in reality. For example, the court concludes that since Mr. Bear took several actions on his own behalf, including the appeal to the ninth circuit, then he must somehow be competent. In fact, the federal court was so concerned about Bear's mental status that it did appoint a guardian ad litem, so Bear did not need an appointment of a guardian. In fact, Bear did not handle his appeal at all, he was represented by his ninth circuit attorney, John Scannell.

With respect to Mr. Scannell, the court made repeated references to John Scannell being a "disbarred attorney", which has no relevance at all to this case other than the court's bias against both Scannell and Bear. What possible relevance is Scannell's disputed bar status have anything at all to do with the issues of this case?

The court then moves on to create a fiction that no one ever moved for an appointment of a guardian ad litem. In fact, Bear for two years had been attempting to get a guardian ad litem appointed through his friends Lennstrom and Scannell. A Guardian Ad Litem was appointed twice,

once in Pierce County and once in King County. Bear did not think another would be necessary, because King County was on the verge of appointing a guardian and another guardian ad litem would have been a waste of judicial resources. The court improperly switched the primary and alternate arguments of Bear, claiming there was some kind of implication by Bear, that the trial court should have sua sponte appointed a guardian ad litem. This was Bear's alternate, not primary argument.

Then the court ignores its own cited precedent *Graham v. Graham*, 40 Wn.2d 64, 67, 240 P.2d 564 (1941) that says an application is not necessary. The court criticizes Bear for not presenting evidence showing that courts have declared him incompetent, while ignoring the obvious, that Underwood himself presented the evidence to the court. Then the court came to the decision that this evidence should be ignored because it is not "manifest" enough (whatever that means) when a Superior Court judge, shortly after this summary judgment was issued, appointed Scannell as Bear's guardian.

Even the one sided presentation submitted by Underwood's counsel, cited to an expert opinion that Mr. Bear should not be allowed to sue until a guardian had been appointed. (CP 164), Neither the defendant's counsel, nor the trial court, nor the court of appeals cited to any expert testimony or medical evidence as to why this expert opinion should have been disregarded and ignored.

Aug 25 15 01:20p

The court of appeals correctly cited to the correct standard for abuse of discretion in not granting a continuance: Discretion is abused when it is based on untenable grounds or is manifestly unreasonable. In re Det. of Schuoler, 106 Wn.2d 500,512, 723 P.2d 1103 (1986).

But then the court inexplicably turned logic on its head by referring to a case of a person who was not even arguably incompetent and in fact was represented by counsel. See court's reference to Turner v. Kohler, 54 Wn. App. 688, 693, 775 P.2d 474 (1989) on page 13 of its opinion. What possible relevance was this case to a person who has been declared mentally incompetent by four different courts and who, as a result, was forbidden by statute from even appearing, let alone presenting arguments and evidence until a guardian had been appointed?

This is what is wrong with the trial court's decision and its subsequent ratification by division III. If the court was concerned that previous courts were in error, and he was capable of proceeding without a guardian, then it should have appointed a guardian ad litem to investigate the issue. If the court of appeals judges felt the evidence was not "manifest" enough, then they should have remanded back to the trial court to give Bear an opportunity to present a defense. Instead, both courts just looked at the one sided presentation of the defendants, who obviously filed this motion in anticipation of the guardianship appointment, so that

Bear could not present a defense, and unfairly obtained a dismissal as a result.

Such decision making is obviously based upon untenable grounds and is manifestly unreasonable, because it requires the petitioner to violate a state statute in order to have his case heard.

CONCLUSION

RAP 13.4 gives four possibilities as to when a petition for review will be granted. (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision fo the Supreme Court. (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of the Court of Appeals. (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined

Three of the four factors come into play here. As argued earlier, this decision is in conflict with at least two Supreme court decisions, *Graham v. Graham*, 40 Wn.2d 64, 67, 240 P.2d 564 (1941) and *In re Det. Of Schuoler*, 106 Wn.2d 500,512, 723 P.2d 1103 (1986). Second, it presents a significant question of law under both the United States Constitution and the Washington constitution concerning the right to due process by the mentally incompetent, who are among the most vulnerable members of our society.

Finally and most importantly, this petition presents of issue of immense public interest and concern. Is this court going to stand up for rights of the mentally disabled? Or are we going to be continue to be treated to the spectacle of abusers of the most vulnerable members of our society, racing to the courthouse to get suits filed against them dismissed before the mentally incompetent can get their guardians appointed?