RECEIVED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
Oct 08, 2015, 11:25 am
BY RONALD R. CARPENTER
CLERK

SUPREME COURT NO. 92164-4 COURT OF APPEALS NO. 321274-III

RECEIVED BY E-MAIL

# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

MICHAEL CHIOFAR GUMMO BEAR,

Petitioner,

٧.

MICHAEL UNDERWOOD,

Respondent.

#### ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

Sam B. Franklin, WSBA No. 1903 Sarah L. Lee, WSBA No. 27364 Of Attorneys for Respondent

LEE SMART, P.S., INC. 1800 One Convention Place 701 Pike Street, Suite 1800 Seattle, WA 98101-3929 (206) 624-7990



##

#### I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Defendant-respondent, Michael Underwood, asks that this Court deny the Petition for Review by plaintiff-petitioner, Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear.

#### II. CITATION TO COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

Bear v. State, et al., 187 Wn. App. 1035 (2015) (unpublished).

#### III. ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Whether this Court should deny plaintiffs-petitioner Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear's Petition for Review, where:

- 1. The Court of Appeals' decision does not conflict with any other reported Washington decision that would warrant review under RAP 13.4(b)(1) or (2);
- 2. The Court of Appeals' decision is unpublished and therefore has no precedential value;
- 3. Mr. Bear fails to identify or substantiate any significant question of constitutional law that would warrant review under RAP 13.4(b)(3);
- 4. This case presents no substantial public interest under RAP 13.4(b)(4), because the present dispute involves no one but the parties to this action and will not recur; and
- 5. The Court of Appeals' decision was correct on its merits.

#### IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Mr. Bear sued his public defender, Mr. Underwood, for allegedly negligently defending him in a 2008 prosecution for felony harassment concerning a threatening phone call Mr. Bear made to a judicial assistant in the Pierce County Superior Court. CP 110. On November 19, 2009, the State ultimately dismissed that Pierce County charge on November 19, 2009. CP 221.

On February 19, 2010, Mr. Bear, pro se, filed his complaint in this action under cause number 10-2-06657-3. Mr. Underwood was one of several defendants named in complaint who Mr. Bear alleged had committed malpractice. CP 3-9. On April 2, 2010, the case was removed to United States District Court for the Western District of Washington at Tacoma. CP 239. On September 9, 2010, Judge Benjamin Settle entered an "Order Granting Request for Appointment of Guardian Ad Litem." CP 267. John O' Melveny was appointed as guardian ad litem and was ordered to submit a report concerning how the lawsuit should proceed to serve Mr. Bear's best interests. CP 267. On February 4, 2011, Mr. O'Melveny filed his report that the only viable claim Mr. Bear might have was the tort claim against Mr. Underwood because of factual questions concerning Mr. Underwood's representation. CP 292.

On March 24, 2011, Judge Settle entered an Order of Dismissal and Remand in accord with the recommendations of O'Melveny's report. CP 294-301. All claims against all defendants were dismissed, with the exception of the malpractice claim against Mr. Underwood which, was remanded to Pierce County. CP 301.

On April 7, 2011, Mr. Bear, *pro se*, appealed Judge Settle's order to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals, arguing that O'Melveny did not meet his obligations as guardian ad litem and requesting appointment of counsel. CP 303-13.

While the Ninth Circuit Appeal was pending, on May 23, 2011, Mr. Bear, *pro se*, filed an "Amended Complaint" in Pierce County Superior Court, alleging that Mr. Underwood committed legal malpractice. CP 105-07. The Declaration of Mailing by Mr. Bear stated that Mr. Underwood was mailed a copy of the Amended Complaint at Suite 101, 2120 State Avenue NE, Olympia, WA 98506. CP 337-39. This was the business mailing address for Mr. Underwood. CP 341. Mr. Underwood was not personally served. CP 90.

On June 20, 2013, the Ninth Circuit affirmed the District Court's decision, holding that the District Court had not abused its discretion in denying Mr. Bear's motion for appointment of counsel and that Bear's argument concerning O'Melveny were unpersuasive. CP 33-35.

On July 31, 2013, more than two years following the filing of Mr. Bear's amended complaint, Mr. Underwood moved for summary judgment on the basis that Mr. Bear had not served process as required by RCW 4.28.080 and CR 4 and the three-year statute of limitations for a legal-malpractice action had run. CP 78-98. Mr. Underwood argued that Mr. Bear's malpractice claim accrued at the latest on November 19, 2009, when the criminal harassment charge was dismissed and that the three-year limitations period expired on November 19, 2012. CP 78-98.

On September 16, 2013, Mr. Bear filed a response to Mr. Underwood's motion for summary judgment, which asked for a continuance and asserted he had no guardian ad litem at that time and that he expected that a guardian ad litem would be appointed by the court in King County for investigation of a guardianship under RCW 4.08.060. Mr. Bear did not respond to the service-of-process issue. CP 432-44.

The superior court granted summary judgment in favor of Mr. Underwood and dismissed Mr. Bear's legal-malpractice claim against Mr. Underwood. CP 407-410. Mr. Bear, *pro se*, appealed the trial court's dismissal of his legal malpractice action against Michael Underwood to the Court of Appeals, Division III on April 14, 2014.

On May 26, 2015, the Court of Appeals affirmed the trial's court's dismissal of Mr. Gummo Bear's legal-malpractice claim in an unpublished

opinion, *Bear v. State*, et al., 187 Wn. App. 1035 (2015). The Court of Appeals found that many of Mr. Bear's own pro se submissions demonstrated that he is an intelligent person and that he is more capable than many pro se parties in some of his legal reasoning, even if his lack of education and experience together with his mental health issues make him a poor judge of which claims are worthy of pursuit. The Court of Appeals also considered other court orders from King and Thurston Superior courts finding Mr. Bear a vexatious litigant. Mr. Bear had filed 15 lawsuits in King County since 2005, and all 15 had been dismissed with prejudice as having no merit. CP 172.

In addition, the trial court on summary judgment was not presented with any motion for appointment of a guardian ad litem, and there was no manifest indication that Mr. Bear was in need of appointment of a guardian ad litem. The Court of Appeals held the trial court did not abuse its discretion in failing to appoint a guardian ad litem sua sponte.

Finally, the Court of Appeals held the trial court did not abuse its discretion to deny Mr. Bear a CR 56(f) continuance. The Court of Appeals held that Mr. Bear did not raise the defense of equitable tolling with the trial court, identify evidence supporting the defense, and explain why only a guardian of his person would be able to gather and present such evidence.

On June 15, 2015 Mr. Gummo Bear *pro se* filed a motion for reconsideration of the Court of Appeals May 26, 2015 decision. On July 28, 2015, the court filed an Order Denying Motion for Reconsideration. On August 25, 2015, Mr. Gummo Bear *pro se* filed his Petition for Review, which was filed in this Court on September 1, 2015.

#### V. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED

A. Mr. Bear fails to establish any basis under RAP 13.4 for this Court to accept review.

Mr. Bear's Petition for Review does not present a proper basis for review by this Court under RAP 13.4 (b) (1)-(4). Under that rule, this Court will accept a petition for review only:

- (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or
- (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of the Court of Appeals; or
- (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or the United States is involved; or
- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

RAP 13.4(b).

Furthermore, nothing in RAP 13.4 or in Washington law entitles Mr. Bear to review by this Court simply because he disagrees with the Court of Appeals' decision:

[I]t is a mistake for a party seeking review to make the perceived injustice the focus of attention in the petition for

review. RAP 13.4(b) says nothing in its criteria about correcting isolated instances of injustice. This is because the Supreme Court, in passing upon petitions for review, is not operating as a court of error. Rather, it is functioning as the highest policy-making judicial body of the state. ...

The Supreme Court's view in evaluating petitions is global in nature. Consequently, the primary focus of a petition for review should be on why there is a compelling need to have the issue or issues presented decided generally. The significance of the issues must be shown to transcend the particular application of the law in question. Each of the four alternative criteria of RAP 13.4(b) supports this view. The court accepts review sparingly, only approximately 10 percent of the time. Failure to show the court the "big picture" will likely diminish the already statistically slim prospects of review.

Wash. Appellate Prac. Deskbook § 27.11 (1998) (italics in original).

Mr. Bear asserts that all four criteria for Supreme Court review, RAP 13.4(b)(1)-(4), apply here, but he fails to explain how or why any of those four criteria fit the present case. They do not.

Mr. Bear bases his Petition for Review on the Court of Appeals' unpublished decision. Because the Court of Appeals' decision is unpublished, it has no precedential value. RCW 2.06.040. Washington law has long held that unpublished opinions do not have precedential value. *State v. Fitzpatrick*, 5 Wn. App. 661, 668, 491 P.2d 262, (1971). Unpublished opinions of the Court of Appeals will not be considered in the Court of Appeals and should not be considered in the trial courts. *Id.* They do not become a part of the common law of the State of Washington.

If the trial courts were to consider them, it not only would waste their time but also would permit any group of lawyers to collect such opinions and create an unfair advantage by citing cases not available to their opponents.

Id. "Unpublished opinions ... should not be cited or relied upon in any manner." Skamania County v. Woodall, 104 Wn. App. 525, 536 n.11, 16 P.3d 701, rev. denied 144 Wn.2d 1021, 34 P.3d 1232 (2001) (citing RAP 10.4(h)).

Washington courts strongly discourage citing unpublished cases, and sanctions can be imposed on those that do. In *Johnson v. Allstate Ins. Co.*, 126 Wn. App. 510, 519-20, 108 P. 3d 1273, 1278 (2005,) the court admonished Allstate for its use of citing unpublished opinions to the trial court in the guise of "non-controlling authority." The court held, "We do not consider unpublished opinions in the Court of Appeals, and they should not be considered in the trial court." *Id.* 

The Court of Appeals' Decision here has no precedential value.

Therefore, there is no possibility that the Court of Appeals' Decision creates supposedly bad precedent, because it is not precedent at all.

## B. Plain language of RCW 4.28.080 specifies requirements of Service of Process.

Proper service of the summons and complaint is a prerequisite to a court obtaining jurisdiction over a party. *Harvey v. Obermeit*, 163 Wn. App. 311, 318, 261 P.3d 671 (2011) (citation omitted). Service of process

is sufficient only if it satisfies the minimum requirements of due process and the requirements set forth by statute. *Powell v. Sphere Drake Ins. PLC*, 97 Wn. App. 890, 999, 988 P.2d 12 (1999).

The applicable statute, RCW 4.28.080, provides in relevant part:

Service made in the modes provided in this section **shall** be taken and held to be personal service. The **summons shall** be served by delivering a copy thereof, as follows:

. . .

- (15) In all other cases, to the defendant personally, or by leaving a copy of the summons at the house of his or her usual abode with some person of suitable age and discretion then resident therein.
- (16) In lieu of service under subsection (15) of this section, where the person cannot with reasonable diligence be served as described, the summons may be served as provided in this subsection, and shall be deemed complete on the tenth day after the required mailing: By leaving a copy at his or her usual mailing address with a person of suitable age and discretion who is a resident, proprietor, or agent thereof, and by thereafter mailing a copy by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the person served at his or her usual mailing address. For the purposes of this subsection, "usual mailing address" does not include a United States postal service post office box or the person's place of employment.

### (Emphasis added.)

Where a statute is unambiguous, the court assumes the legislature means what it says and will not engage in statutory construction past the plain meaning of the words. *In re Estate of Jones*, 152 Wn.2d 1, 11, 93 P.3d 147 (2004) (citing *Davis v. Dep't of Licensing*, 137 Wn.2d 957, 963-

64, 977 P.2d 554 (1999)). Unless clear contrary legislative intent exists, the word "shall" in a statute is a mandatory directive. *Kabbae v. Dep't of Social & Health Servs.*, 144 Wn. App. 432, 441, 192 P.3d 903 (2008).

A trial court does not have jurisdiction over a defendant who is not properly served. *Scott v. Goldman*, 82 Wn. App. 1, 6, 917 P.2d 131 (1996). If a trial court has not acquired jurisdiction over a defendant, that defendant is entitled to immediate dismissal. *See Bethel v. Sturmer*, 3 Wn. App. 862, 865-66, 479 P.2d 131 (1970) (citation omitted).

Mr. Bear acting *pro se*, timely filed his initial complaint on February 19, 2010 and timely filed his amended complaint on May 23, 2011 in the trial court following the remand from U.S. District Court. Mr. Bear had until November 19, 2012 to effect proper service of process on Mr. Underwood so that the trial court could acquire jurisdiction. Despite the plain language of RCW 4.28.080 directing methods of service and warning what did not constitute proper service, Mr. Bear simply did not serve Mr. Underwood in the manner the statute directs so as to effect proper service. This is a mistake that attorneys as well as pro se plaintiffs sometimes make that has harsh results and fatal consequences for the action. Mr. Bear failed to address the failure to effect proper service of Mr. Underwood before either the trial court or the Court of Appeals. Because of the statutory mandate, the trial court properly dismissed

Mr. Bear's action, and the Court of Appeals properly affirmed the dismissal.

## C. Mr. Bear's actions demonstrated comprehension of legal process.

Mental competency is presumed; order to establish mental incompetency, the evidence must be clear, cogent, and convincing. *Binder v. Binder*, 50 Wn.2d 142, 148-49, 309 P.2d 1050 (1957) (citing *Tecklenburg v. Wash. Gas & Electric Co.*, 40 Wn.2d 141, 241, P.2d 1172, 1174 (1952).

Courts can appoint guardians ad litem for parties litigant when reasonably convinced that a party litigant is not competent, understandingly and intelligently, to comprehend the significance of legal proceeding and the effect and relationship of such proceedings in terms of the best interest of such party litigant. *Graham v. Graham*, 40 Wn.2d 64, 66-67, 240 P.2d 564 (1952).

Mr. Bear has asserted that the statute of limitations applicable in his case could have been tolled under RCW 4.16.190 or under equity principles so that the trial court sua sponte could appoint a guardian ad litem to assist his alleged tolling defense. Mr. Bear's petition for review should be denied because his assertion is incorrect in law and in fact.

On July 8, 2008 the trial court presiding over the underlying felony harassment charge entered an Order for Examination by Western State Hospital (15 Day Evaluation) to determine Mr. Bear's capacity to

understand the proceedings and to assist in his own defense of the charge. Judge Ronald E. Culpepper signed the Order. CP 135-139. On August 20, 2008, the trial court had reviewed the report of Barry Ward, Psy. D., Licensed Psychologist, dated August 13, 2008 and was satisfied that Mr. Bear was competent to understanding the proceedings against him, and to assist in his own defense. The court entered an Order Regarding Competency of Defendant finding Mr. Bear was competent to understand the criminal proceedings against him and to assist in his own defense. Judge Culpepper signed the Order. CP 141-42.

The court that presided over Mr. Bear's criminal proceedings was the same court that presided over his legal malpractice proceedings. CP 410-413. Judge Culpepper had actual knowledge of Mr. Bear's legal competency five years before the summary judgment argument, which arose out the same events in the underlying action. Moreover, there was no evidence presented by Mr. Bear at summary judgment concerning his lack of competency to comprehend the significance of the proceedings so that the court would be reasonably convinced that a GAL should be appointed. Accordingly, it was well within the trial court's sound discretion not to appoint a GAL. As the Court of Appeals noted, Mr. Bear's unique mental health issue related to litigation is not that he cannot comprehend legal proceedings but that is irrationally addicted to

bringing lawsuits. Only when incomprehension of legal proceedings by a party appears evident from the court's perspective would the trial court need to consider appointment of a GAL under RCW 4.08,060.

#### VI. CONCLUSION

Mr. Bear has entirely failed to meet any of the criteria of RAP 13.4(b) that would permit review by this Court. The Court of Appeals' decision affirming the trial court's decisions not to appoint a GAL and dismissing the action based on lack of service of process is consistent with prior decisions from other Courts of Appeals and this Court. Accordingly, this Court should deny Mr. Bear's petition for review.